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Annexure 2

S. 
No.

Section Queries / Requests Remarks

1 Section 2.2: Eligibility 
Criteria

We request you to kindly broaden the definition of "Similar Nature" projects to 
include Exhibition Centre, Convention Centre, Auditoriums, Cultural Centre. These 
project types have also been accepted under Museum tenders by CPWD also, and 
on the same lines, we request you to consider them as eligible.

No change. (Refer to RFP page 14)

We also request you to consider Design/DPR completed projects under the similar 
work category.

If the design work has been completed and the work of the 
execution agency is underway, it will be considered. 

Does the stated project size eligibility criterion refer specifically to gallery space, or 
to the total built-up area of completed projects?

It refers to the gallery/display area of completed projects. 
(Refert to RFP page 14)

We request you to kindly reduce the turnover requirement from Rs. 50 Cr. to Rs. 25 
Cr and Indian partner from 10 Cr to 5 Cr and adjust the evaluation criteria 
accordingly.

No change. 

Will the Ministry permit direct disbursement of fees to each JV partner, or only to the 
Lead Partner?

No, only to the Lead Partner.

The Applicant should have provided comprehensive museum design services and 
satisfactorily planned, designed, and completed a similar Museum Project/Work, 
during the last 7 (Seven) years… We request to change to 12 years.

Refer Corrigendum No 3 dated 24.07.2025

In the case of a consortium, will the combined experience of all partner firms be 
considered, or will eligibility be determined only based on the parent/lead firm?

Entire projects of specifed categories executed by JV 
partners/Consortium individually will be considered for 
eligibility. Pooling of area of part projects will not be 
allowed. 

Will adaptive reuse of heritage or institutional buildings — with mixed-use functions
(galleries, archives, cultural spaces) — count toward the area requirement, even if 
not entirely dedicated to exhibition galleries?

Refer Corrigendum No 3 dated 24.07.2025

2 Section 1.8: Schedule of 
Selection Process (Point 4)

OR Annexure 9 EMD

The requirement of Rs. 40 Lakhs towards EMD is quite high for a consultancy firm. 
We kindly request you to consider exemption from EMD payment for MSME 
registered firms, in line with Government norms, to encourage wider participation 
from MSE-registered firms.

The requirement of the MSME registered firms is in line with 
the government terms

Last Date & Time for submission of bid: 30.08.2025 (As per portal time). Request 
that the date of submission be extended by 4 weeks to allow adequate time for 
preparation for the technical submission

3 weeks extension has been given. 

3 Section 1.6: Brief 
Description of the Selection 
Process

OR

Section 4.5 Final Evaluation 

In view of the importance and prestige of this project located in the capital city, we 
request you to consider adopting QCBS 80:20 instead of 70:30. It is generally 
observed that the QCBS 70:30 methods often result in the award going to the lowest 
quoting bidder, which may not necessarily ensure the best design outcomes.

No change. 

4 Table 4.1: Short listing 
Criteria for Stage-1 (TS-1) 

AND/OR

Section 1.6: Brief 
Description of the Selection 
Process

Section 4.1 (2) Expertise in 
repurposing heritage 
buildings for museum 
purposes 

Given the creative time investment required, would MoC consider allowing the 
submission of the Indicative Gallery Concept after shortlisting, rather than at the 
initial submission stage?

Refer Corrigendum No 3 dated 24.07.2025
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Annexure 2

S. 
No.

Section Queries / Requests Remarks
4 Table 4.1: Short listing 

Criteria for Stage-1 (TS-1) 

AND/OR

Section 1.6: Brief 
Description of the Selection 
Process

Section 4.1 (2) Expertise in 
repurposing heritage 
buildings for museum 
purposes 

We request that the minimum museum area requirement be revised to 2,500–2,800 
square meters. Many historically significant buildings constructed prior to 1950, 
particularly in India, are not expansive in area. 

No change. 

5 Section 5: Stages of 
Payment, Stage-IV

Can dated final certificate of payment qualify as completion certificate. Yes, the certificate should be supported with bank 
statemenmts of final payment received alog with contract 
document etc

6 Section 4: NDA Note there is reference to an NDA, please can you provide a copy. A copy of the NDA is uploaded. Drawings shall be shared 
after NDA and credentials verified due to security 
considerations.

We are writing to request access to the floor plans and basic structural drawings as 
referenced in the tender.

Same as above. 

7 Section 2.17: Force Majeure
AND 
Section 2.18 Termination of 
Agreement by the Authority

We have reviewed the published RFP document and noted that only the Force 
Majeure and Termination clauses are included on Page No. 20. To carry out a 
thorough evaluation and prepare our pre-bid queries, we kindly request you to share 
the complete General Conditions of Contract (GCC) and Special Conditions of 
Contract (SCC).

RFP includes all conditions.

Have any prior works (e.g., façade restoration, structural retrofitting) already been 
awarded under separate contracts? If so, we request details of such contracts and 
their scope to allow proper demarcation in our proposal.

Restoration is under the scope of MoHUA. An NIT has been 
issued for the same. 

8 Section 4.2:   Evaluation 
Sheet for Jury members

Parameter (e)

Is the Ministry targeting any specific green building or environmental sustainability 
certification (e.g., GRIHA, LEED) for this project?

These aspects are covered in the NIT issued by MoHUA

9 Section 1.8: Schedule of 
Selection Process 

Does the 36 month project duration refer to practical completion of all works, or to 
the final opening of the museum to the public?

Completion of all works. 

The Performance Guarantee Amount is on higher side; we request you to kindly 
reduce it to 2% of the value of work awarded.

No change. 

10 Section 1.7: Currency & 
Payments 

Would MoC consider payments in foreign currency (e.g., GBP), as our international 
partners typically do not operate in INR?

No, in INR. 

11 Section 4.2:  Evaluation 
Sheet for Jury Members

The evaluation matrix for Heritage Sensitivity and Conservation Approach appears 
to allocate a total of 60 marks, while the section notes a “Max. Marks = 50.” Kindly 
clarify this discrepancy.

Refer Corrigendum No 3 dated 24.07.2025
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Annexure 2

S. 
No.

Section Queries / Requests Remarks

12 Section 7: Details of the 
services to be rendered, 
deliveries to be made & 
stages of payment  

Would MoC consider allowing stage payments aligned with Phases 1 to 7 (as 
described on pages 28–33), instead of the area-based stage payments outlined on 
pages 34–35?

Payment schedule will be as it is. 

Preparation and submission two sets of architectural models at 1:200 scale – We 
request: 1) Please clarify if ‘two sets’ are mandatory. 2) 1:200 scale will be 
extremely large; kindly allow a smaller scale or digital model. 3) Model should be 
required only after Concept Design approval. 4) Interior views should be presented 
via walkthrough animation, not physical model. 5) Payment for this stage should be 
increased from 5% to 15% considering the high cost of model preparation

High resolution Digital Model to be submitted along with 
physcial model of 1:500 scale

We request you to revise the Payment Schedule No change. 
13 Section 5.1:Project 

Overview & Objectives:
Are there any statutory restrictions on the site? The staturory restrictions are to follow guidlines of  

heritage committee
14 Section 5.2: Overall Scope 

of Work
We request the Authority to kindly specify the duration of the Defect Liability Period 
(as mentioned in 6.5)

Refer Corrigendum No 3 dated 24.07.2025

Is there an expected frequency of site/client meeting trips? As per the project requirements
Is there any requirement for the project to be delivered in BIM? Yes
Will you be appointing a project manager and/or cost consultant? PMC will be engaged

15 Not included in RFP 
Document 

We hereby request your kind approval to allow our representatives to undertake a 
site inspection of the Yuge Yugeen Bharat Museum premises on the same day, 
following or preceding the meeting.

Shortlisted Agencies Will Be Taken for a Site Visit

16 Table 2.14: Key Personnel Having all the experts in-house may not be possible. Can external consultants be 
engaged?

Yes

Kindly allow architects with substantial professional experience in heritage 
conservation to be considered even if they do not hold a specialized M.Arch in 
Heritage Conservation.

No change 

Is it mandatory for each expert to be an employee or partner of a consortium firm, or 
will such freelance / independent affiliations be accepted as compliant?

The key professional should be atatched to the project for 
the entire duration of the project through an undertaking.

Will the same individual be allowed to represent multiple expert roles in the 
proposal?

No. 

17 ANNEXURE VII: Financial 
Bid Format for Detailed 
Cost Break-up (Lumpsum)

We kindly request the Authority to allow consultancy fees to be quoted as a 
percentage of the total estimated project cost, instead of a fixed lump-sum amount. 

No change. 

Can you please advise on the anticipated total construction value/cost including 
Exhibition / interior fit out cost?

It will depend upon the architectural input and the 
submitted designs

18 Not included in the RFP We kindly request you to clarify whether provisions can be included for additional 
payment or compensation in the event of a project delay not attributable to the 
consultant. Since extended project durations often result in prolonged resource 
allocation, administrative overheads, and increased effort, we request that suitable 
provisions be made to address consultant compensation for such delays beyond the 
original scope and timeline.

Refer Corrigendum No 3 dated 24.07.2025

19 Annexure VI - Indicative 
Gallery Concept 

Would you have some principles or values of Yuge Yugeen Bharat Museum to be 
reflected through the design for this project?

Please refer to Annexure VI of the RFP Document. 
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S. 
No.

Section Queries / Requests Remarks

20 Section 1.1 Background How many architects are invited to participant the selection process? This is an open, competitive global tender published on the 
Government of India’s e-Procurement portal and the 
Ministry of Culture’s website. Hence, there is no restriction 
on the number of architects or firms invited - any eligible 
firm or consortium meeting the RFP criteria can participate.

Who will be the ultimate operator and are they already on board? Ministry of Culture
21 Not included in the RFP Do you have a cap for professional fees? No
22 ANNEXURE-IX: EMD & Bid 

Submission Details 
Since, Bank Guarantee (BG) is not mentioned in Accepted mode of EMD payment. 
But at last line it is mentioned that ‘Bank Guarantee, valid for at least 6 months from 
the last date of bid submission.’ Please confirm Bank Guarantee (BG) is accepted 
mode of EMD or not.

Yes, Bank Guarantee is an acceptable mode of payment, 
refer to Annexure 9
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